
 

 

  

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

City Council Chambers 

Monday, August 14, 2023 at 7:00 PM 

AGENDA 

Call to Order, Prayer, Pledge of Allegiance 

Adjustment and Approval of the Agenda — Items will only be added or removed with the approval of 

the Mayor and City Council. 

Request to Speak/Opportunity for Public Comment — This is an opportunity for members of the 

public to express items of interest to the Mayor and City Council.  This is not a time to respond or take 

action.  Any necessary action will be taken under advisement.  Speakers are asked to use proper decorum 

and to limit comments to no more than three minutes. 

1. Public Comment Acknowledgment: City Manager, Josh Ross will provide clarity on items 

mentioned during public comment, if needed.  

Consent Agenda — The items of the Consent Agenda are adopted on a single motion and vote, unless the 

Mayor and City Council wish to withdraw an item for separate vote and/or discussion. 

2. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting the Regular Meeting minutes of the 

July 10th, 2023 meeting.  

3. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting the Work Session Meeting minutes 

of the July 25th, 2023 meeting.  

4. Street Closure - 2nd Annual Brew & Que Festival: City administration is requesting the 

temporary closure of the 100 Block of West Virginia, East Virginia, West Pennsylvania Avenue, 

and the 100 Block of North and South 12th Street for the 2nd Annual Brew & Que Festival on 

Friday, September 22nd and Saturday, September 23rd, 2023. 

5. Local Water Supply Plan: City Council will consider adopting the local water supply plan. The 

Local Water Supply Plan provides a comprehensive assessment of water supply needs, water 

use, and water availability. 

Business Items 

6. 9/11 Proclamation: Council will consider adopting a proclamation recognizing September 11th 

as a day of service and remembrance. 

7. Public Hearing - Besstown Rd: City Council will hold a public hearing to hear public comment 

regarding rezoning request from Exponential Development for property located at tax parcel 

#151220 (14.155 acres), from Rural (R) to Urban Residential Conditional District (URCD).   

1



8. Public Hearing - Petition for Voluntary Annexation Besstown Rd: City Council will hold a 

public hearing to hear public comment regarding a voluntary annexation petition from 

Exponential Development for property located at tax parcel #151220 (14.155 acres).   

9. Public Hearing - Economic Development Project: City Council will hold a public hearing to 

hear public comment regarding a economic development project.  

10. Resolution - To Approve Level Two Incentive Grant for Project Program: City Council will 

consider approving a resolution regarding an Economic Development Incentive Level II for 

Project Program. Said project is estimated to have a total investment of $17,200,000 to establish 

a facility in Gaston County, to include the purchase and installation of machinery & equipment. 

The firm intends to create at least 222 new jobs within five years of establishing operations, 

expecting to pay an average wage of $78,153. It is anticipated that the Company's capital 

investment in and at the Property and its operations thereat will generate significant ad valorem 

tax, sales tax and other revenues to the County and will qualify for a Level Two Grant.  

City Manager's Report 

11. Budget Amendment: City Council will consider approving a budget amendment regarding a 

Fire Department grant.  

12. Budget Amendment: City Council will consider approving a budget amendment regarding 

several funds.  

Council General Discussion — This is an opportunity for the Mayor and City Council to ask questions 

for clarification, provide information to staff, request staff to report back, or place a matter on a future 

agenda. 

Adjourn 

2



 

 

  

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

City Council Chambers 

Monday, July 10, 2023 at 7:00 PM  

MINUTES 
Members Present  

Mayor, Becky S. Smith, Council Members: Brenda Boyd, Kay McCathen, Donnie Griffin, Brent Guffey,  

Dan Boling, and Joe Will were all present. City Manager, Josh Ross and City Attorney, David Smith were 

present as well.  

Call to Order, Prayer, Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor Smith called the meeting to order. Council member, Brenda Boyd led the audience in prayer. 

Mayor Smith led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Adjustment and Approval of the Agenda  
By motion of Donnie Griffin and unanimous vote, the July agenda was approved with no revisions.  

 

Special Presentations 
Proclamation - Recognizing Police Department: Mayor Smith read a proclamation aloud recognizing the 

City of Bessemer City's Police Department for 10 years of service to the community. Mayor Smith asked 

all present to join her in commending the Police Department.  

 

Request to Speak/Opportunity for Public Comment 
Mayor Smith opened the floor for public comment. The following individuals came forth:  

 

- Christiana Thomas at 305 E. Lee Avenue: Mrs. Thomas addressed Council regarding City water. 

Thomas shared her concerns of city water and health standards. Thomas stated that she received the notice 

about a water violation for the City. She stated that there is bacteria in her water that produces a pink tint 

on her dishes. Thomas stated that she boils her drinking water. Thomas requested that City Staff do 

something to improve the quality of water. 

 

-Shirley Hence at 705 S. Skyland Drive: Mrs. Hince addressed Council regarding sidewalks, speed 

bumps, and water in the Vantine Community. Hince stated that she has witnessed people speeding down 

her road. Hence would like to see the City install sidewalks and better lighting in the Vantine community.  

 

- John Setzer at 905 West Georgia Avenue: Mr. Setzer addressed Council regarding a sewer problem. Mr. 

Setzer stated that he has been at this location for over 30 years. Mr. Setzer stated that he has brought this 

problem to City staff to no avail. Setzer requested that this be fixed. 

 

-David Lutz at 408 N. 12th Street: Mr. Lutz addressed Council about excessive speeding downtown. Lutz 

suggested that the speed be monitored by video tapped recording. Doing this would encourage residents 

to drive slower.  

3

Item 2.



- Aaron Grosdider at 517 Costner School Road: Mr. Grosdider addressed Council regarding the budget 

and the ABC store. Grosdider stated that he only saw $500 of drug money listed in the budget. He did not 

see any revenue listed from the ABC store. Grosdider stated that he didn’t see where any revenue had 

been listed for Code Enforcement cases. Thus, he inquired about why this was not listed. Grosdider 

inquired about the mass communication system Nixle. On the day of the Livent fire, residents were not 

notified to evacuate. City Staff disburse other information through this software, one should have been 

sent regarding the fire.  

 

Public Comment Acknowledgment 

Mayor Smith recognized City Manager, Josh Ross to provide clarification on some items discussed during 

public comment. 

- In May 2023, Bessemer City sent out a water violation notice notifying customers that the City did 

not meet disinfection of byproducts (DBP) for treatment technicians as required for total organic 

carbon (TOC). This notice was for the reporting period of October 1, 2022-December 31, 2022. 

Essentially, our staff should have submitted a report with this information. Staff submitted this 

report quarterly; however, the regulation changed requiring the report to be submitted monthly. 

The reporting issue has been resolved. There was no change in water quality or the way we 

process water. This was a reporting error. Subsequently, in June 2023, a violation notice was sent 

out to notify customers that the City missed the required 1.00 removal ratio of Total Organic 

Carbon (TOC) in our treatment process for reporting period January 1, 2023-March 31, 2023.  

During this time, The City was removing TOC at .99, missing the required removal ratio by only 

.01.  Current improvements to the system and our treatment process will help this removal ratio 

moving forward. We have gone from a single stage flocculation to a two-stage flocculation system 

as of June 8, 2023. We have also changed our visual monitoring of flocculation chambers as well. 

Total Organic Carbon (TOC) has no health effects.  

- If anyone has a concern with their water, they can contact the City and we can come out and 

conduct a test.  

- Additionally, the City budget includes placeholders in revenue lines. There is not a set number for 

revenues. Many times the amount can vary by what the City actually collects. Revenues are 

projections for monies anticipated to be received.  

- The ABC store is regulated by the Bessemer City ABC Board. City Council only appoints the 

board members. City Council does not control the store or it’s budget.  

 

Consent Agenda 

The following items on the Consent Agenda were unanimously approved by motion of Donnie Griffin: 

1. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting the Regular Meeting minutes of the 

June 12th, 2023 meeting.  

3. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting the Work Session Meeting minutes 

of the June 27th, 2023 meeting.  

 

Establish Public Hearing - Besstown Rd:  

By motion of Kay McCathen and unanimous vote, a public hearing will be held on Monday, August 14th 

at 7:00 PM to hear public comment regarding a rezoning request from Exponential  Development for 

property located at tax parcel #151220 (14.155 acres), from Rural (R) to Urban Residential Conditional 

District (URCD).  

Establish Public Hearing - Petition for Voluntary Annexation Besstown Rd:  

4

Item 2.



By motion of Dan Boling and unanimous vote, a public hearing will be held on Monday, August 14th at 

7:00 PM to hear public comment regarding a voluntary annexation petition from Exponential 

Development for property located at tax parcel #151220 (14.155 acres).   

 

City Manager’s Report 
City Manager, Josh Ross, addressed Council regarding the following:  

- General: I would like to extend a public thank you to all of our neighboring communities that 

came to aid in the Livent fire on Monday, June 26th. City Staff from every department worked 

together to contain the fire. All economic development projects are underway, Kintegra 

health, Foundry Commercial, and Osage Mill. The coworking located at 108 West Virginia 

Avenue is almost complete. This property will hold 8 to 10 businesses and offer a meeting 

space. Stinger Park is officially open to the public. We hosted the Dixie Youth Tournament on 

June 30-July 5. The Bessemer City 12U Girls won the 2023 Dixie Girls Softball Ponytails 

State Championship. Also, Bessemer City also won the Sportsmanship Trophy, and the girls 

will be going to the World Series in Louisiana on July 28th through August 4th, 2023. In 

regards to walkability the City is aware that sidewalks are needed along Highway 161 and the 

Vantine community. However, the City has not received funds from the state to begin 

installing the sidewalks. Highway 161 is a state-maintained road, thus we can not begin the 

project without receiving their approval and funding. Additionally, Nixle was not used on the 

day of the Livent fire, as there was no need to evacuate the community. Everyone was safe, 

and emergency personnel were on site to contain the fire.  

 

Council General Discussion  

Mayor Smith opened the floor for Council general discussion. Council member, Dan Boling commended 

the youth girls 11-12U team for winning the championship. They will be going to Lousiana in July to 

compete for the national title. Mr. Boling also inquired about a pothole on S. 12th Street. Council member, 

Donnie Griffin commended City Staff and lifeguard personnel for a successful tournament at Stinger Park 

during opening weekend. Mr. Griffin asked if Mason Chastain, could be recognized for going above and 

beyond during the tournament. Mr. Chastain has been a dedicated lifeguard for 2 years. Council member, 

Brent Guffey inquired about yard waste and bulk pick up being delayed. Council member, Brenda Boyd 

commended City Staff on a great tournament.  

 

Closed Session 

By motion of Brenda and unanimous vote, City Council entered in to closed session to discuss a 

personnel and economic development matter pursuant to NCGS143-318(a)(4)(6) at 7:41 PM.  

 

By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, City Council came out of closed session at 8:14 PM. No 

action was taken.  

 

Establish a Public Hearing 

By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, City Council will hold a public hearing for Monday, 

August 14th at 7:00 PM for an Economic Development project.  

 

Adjournment  

Being no further business to come before the board, by motion of Donnie Griffin and unanimous vote, the 

meeting was adjourned at 8:15 PM. 

 

_______________________                                                   ______________________________ 

   Becky S. Smith, Mayor                                   Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk 

5

Item 2.



 

 

  

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

City Council Chambers 

Tuesday, July 25, 2023 at 3:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Call to Order 

Mayor Becky S. Smith called the meeting to order.  

 

Members Present  

Mayor, Becky S. Smith, Council Members: Joe Will, Kay McCathen, Brenda Boyd, Brent Guffey, Dan 

Boling, and Donnie Griffin were all present. City Manager, Josh Ross and department heads were present 

as well. A quorum was present.  

 

Department Head Reports 

Bessemer City department heads gave reports on their department’s status:  

 

JoD Franklin, Parks and Recreation Director- Mr. Franklin addressed Council regarding Stinger Park, the 

Community Bbq, and upcoming tournaments. This will be the second year that we have hosted the 

community bbq, it will be held at Stinger Park. There are several tournaments scheduled throughout the 

year. Light discussion was held regarding car placement at the Sounds of Summer Cruise-In series. The 

purchase of a restroom trailer for City events was discussed. Projected cost for such endeavors is around 

$60,000 to $80,000.  

 

Jamie Ramsey, Director of Operations- Mr. Ramsey addressed Council regarding the paving project and 

improvements to Stinger Park. Paving on City various City streets will begin soon. Upgrades will be made 

to the walking trail and embankment area by the Soccer field. Council directed Mr. Ramsey to follow up 

with a resident in Ward 2 regarding a drainage issue.   

 

Tom Ellis, Police Chief – Mr. Ellis addressed Council regarding call volume and general operations of the 

Police Department. Overall call volume is up. This is in line with the volume from last summer. City Staff 

will be working with the local middle and high school to strengthen the department’s law enforcement 

presence in the schools.  

 

Nathan Hester, Development Services Director – Mr. Hester addressed Council regarding upcoming 

presentations at the August 2023 Regular Meeting. There will be a public hearing on the potential rezoning 

and annexation of apartments on Bess Town Road from Exponential Development Inc. Exponential 

Development will be conducting a traffic study once school is in session. The project will consist of market 

rate one and two bedroom apartments.  

 

Hydeia Hayes, Human Capital Officer & City Clerk – Ms. Hayes addressed Council regarding the recent 

Board appointments Council made earlier this month. All applicants have completed their oaths of office 

and been notified of their placement on their respective Board.  

6

Item 3.



 

Advisory Board Appointments Discussion  

Mayor and City Council reviewed the application received by Andrea McLeymore to serve on the Parks & 

Recreation Advisory Board.  

 

By motion of Joe Will and unanimous vote, Andrea McLeymore was appointed to serve on the Parks & 

Recreation Advisory Board. She will serve until 2026. 

 

Establish A Public Hearing 
Development Services Director, Nathan Hester informed Council that Mrs. Ellis and her husband recently 

purchased the property in question from Mt. Pleasant Baptist Church. The Ellis’ would like to have the 

parcel rezoned to extend the limits for their livestock.  

 

By motion of Joe Will and unanimous vote, a public hearing will be held on Monday, August 14th at 7:00 

PM to hear public comment regarding a rezoning request from Stacy Ellis for property located at tax parcel 

#204346 from business campus to rural for purposes of maintaining livestock.  

 

Stewart Crossing  

Development Services Director, Nathan Hester informed Council regarding the residential development off 

of Costner School Rd. The residential neighborhood was formerly approved when Eastwood Homes 

submitted a rezoning application. Now Meritage has taken control of the project. City Staff will work with 

Meritage homes to complete the necessary documents for annexation in the future.  

 

City Manager’s Report 

Josh Ross, City Manager- Mr. Ross informed Council that the City will be closing on the old theatre on 110 

West Virginia Avenue, City Council approved the purchase of the building with Business Accelerator 

Program (BAP) funds in June 2023. Stinger Park is now completed. The ribbon cutting will be held Friday, 

August 11th. The City’s final amount due to Neil Grading was $63,000. However, per Council a credit 

towards the liquidated damage amount for items not included in the project was permitted. Thus, the final 

payment to Neil Grading will be $48,500. The Manger recommended that this would be the preferred 

method to include items without increasing the project budget. City Staff recently met with a consultant to 

discuss future plans for a public safety facility.  

 

Council General Discussion 
Mayor Smith opened the floor for Council general discussion. Council member, Joe Will inquired about a 

change to the minutes from the June 2023 Regular Meeting minutes. Mr. Will would like to see his remarks 

about the previous City Manager mentioned. Additionally, he would like to see the minutes amended to 

reflect that the citizens of Bessemer City will see a tax increase although the rate remained at $0.45 per 

$100.  Mayor Smith informed Mr. Will to bring this as a motion before Council at the next meeting.  

Adjourn 

Being no further business to come before the board, the meeting was adjourned at 5:17 PM by motion of 

Joe Will and unanimous vote. 

 

 

_______________________                                                  ______________________________ 

   Becky S. Smith, Mayor                 Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk 

7

Item 3.



 

 
ORDINANCE 

-TEMPORARY STREET CLOSURE FOR 2nd ANNUAL BREW & QUE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Bessemer City wishes to provide recreational entertainment for the citizens of Bessemer City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Bessemer City understands the importance of hosting such entertainment in the downtown central 

business district of Bessemer City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Bessemer City acknowledges that a special event requires rerouting traffic and providing safety 

measures for citizens attending said events; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Bessemer City wishes to host its 2nd Annual Brew & Que Festival in downtown Bessemer City 

along Highway 274 (East and West Virginia Avenue), the 100 Block of South and North 12th Street, and the 100 Block of 

West Pennsylvania Avenue on Friday, September 22nd and Saturday, September 23rd  from the hours of 8 AM to 11 PM; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Bessemer City pursuant to the authority granted by G.S. 

20-169 that they do hereby declare a temporary road closure during the days and times set forth below on the following 

described portion of a State Highway System route: 

 

Dates: Friday, September 22nd and Saturday, September 23rd, 2023  

 

Times: 8 AM -11 PM 

 

Route Description: 100 Block of East Virginia Avenue and 100 Block of West Virginia Avenue (Highway 274), 100 Block 

of South 12th Street, 100 Block of North 12th Street, and the 100 Block of West Pennsylvania Avenue 

 

Adopted by City Council this 14th Day of August, 2023 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

           Becky S. Smith, Mayor 

      ___________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                   Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 
COBC-GOVBOD-2022-2023 O 45 
 
 

8

Item 4.



 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING LOCAL WATER SUPPLY PLAN 

 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 143-355 (l) requires that each unit of local government 

that provides public water service or that plans to provide public water service and each 

large community water system shall, either individually or together with other units of local 

government and large community water systems, prepare and submit a Local Water Supply 

Plan; and  

 

WHEREAS, as required by the statute and in the interests of sound local planning, a Local Water 

Supply Plan for the City of Bessemer City, has been developed and submitted to the City 

Council for approval; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Local Water Supply Plan is in accordance with the 

provisions of North Carolina General Statute 143-355 (l) and that it will provide appropriate 

guidance for the future management of water supplies for City of Bessemer City, as well as 

useful information to the Department of Environmental Quality for the development of a 

state water supply plan as required by statute; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City that the 

Local Water Supply Plan entitled, Local Water Supply Plan dated July 2023 , is hereby 

approved and shall be submitted to the Department of Environmental Quality, Division of 

Water Resources; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council intends that this plan shall be revised to reflect 

changes in relevant data and projections at least once every five years or as otherwise 

requested by the Department, in accordance with the statute and sound planning practice. 

 
     This the 14th day of August, 2023 

                                                                             
      Name: _______________________________________ 
 
      Title: ________________________________________ 
  
      Signature: ____________________________________ 
 
   
ATTEST: 

        ______________________________ 

                                                                                                                Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

 
COBC-GOVBOD-2022-2023 R 16 

9

Item 5.



PROCLAMATION  

SEPTEMBER 11TH DAY OF SERVICE & REMEMBRANCE 

WHEREAS, on September 11, 2001, terrorists attacked the United States leading to the tragic death of 

thousands of innocent United States citizens and other citizens from 90 different countries and territories; and

WHEREAS, in response to the attacks in New York City, Washington D.C. and Shanksville, Pennsylvania, 

firefighters, police officers, emergency medical technicians, physicians, nurses, military personnel, and other 

first responders immediately and without concern for their own well-being rose to service, in a heroic attempt to 

protect the lives of those still at risk, consequently saving thousands of men and women; and  

WHEREAS, in the days, weeks and months following the attacks, thousands of people in the United States and 

other nations spontaneously volunteered to help support the rescue and recovery efforts, braving both physical 

and emotional hardship; and  

WHEREAS, hundreds of thousands of brave men and women continue to serve every day, having answered the 

call to duty as members of our nation’s armed forces with thousands having given their lives, or been injured to 

defend our nation’s security and prevent future terrorist attacks; and  

WHEREAS, since September 11, 2001, more than 15,000 North Carolina National Guardsmen from Manteo to

Murphy have mobilized-and deployed across the globe, leaving family, employers and friends; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina has been called the most military friendly state in the nation, and its citizens 

continue to support our brave men and women in uniform and the veterans that came before them; and 

WHEREAS, the entire nation witnessed and shared in the tragedy of 9/11 and in the immediate aftermath 

of the September 11 attacks became unified under a remarkable spirit of service and compassion that inspired 

and helped heal the nation; and 

WHEREAS, in the years immediately following the September 11, 2001 attacks, the U.S. Bureau of Labor 

Statistics documented a marked increase in volunteerism among citizens in the United States; and

WHEREAS, families of 9/11 victims, survivors, first responders, rescue and recovery workers, and volunteers 

called for Congress to pass legislation to formally authorize the establishment of September 11 as an 

annually recognized “National Day of Service Remembrance”, and for the President of the United States to 

proclaim the day as such;  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Becky S. Smith and the City Council do hereby proclaim September 11th, 

2023 as a “Day of Service and Remembrance” and urge all citizens to commit to community service on this day 
and an ongoing basis. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Bessemer City to 

be affixed on this 14th day of August 2023.

_______________________________          _______________________________ 
Becky S. Smith, Mayor        Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk

10

Item 6.



11

Item 7.



12

Item 7.



$600

June 13, 2023

CD 01-2023

13

Item 7.



14

Item 7.



Exhibit A 

Areas of Relief and Conditions of Approval 

CD 01-2023 – Bess Town Rd. Multi-family Development 

 

 

1. The proposed development shall follow the requirements of the City of Bessemer City 

Land Development Code. 

2. Developer responsible for all fees associated but not limited to engineering, plan review, 

permitting, constructing, inspecting, of the following utility improvements: 

a. Twelve (12) inch water line from current position on Bess Town Rd. to furthest 

driveway. 

b. On-site pump station 

c. Sewer gravity extension from Stinger Park to 12th St.  

d. Sewer gravity extension to MH Kiser to 12th St.  

e. New pump, electrical equipment, and generator for 9th St. pump station. 

3. Developer responsible for any and all system development fees.  

4. Developer required to construct multifamily residential buildings at minimum thirty (30%) 

percent masonry. (Recommendation from Planning Board)  

5. Developers are granted relief to develop multifamily residential project on a tract of land 

over three (3) acres in size.  

6. Developers are granted relief from having to provide elevators for a multifamily residential 

building with a minimum of three stories.  

7. Developers are granted relief from having to provide interior corridors and allowed to 

construct open breezeways for access to residential units.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________   ___________________________ 

Applicant/Developer Signature   Mayor Signature 

15

Item 7.



 
 

1 
 

Bessemer City – Multi‐Family  
Exhibit B 

 

The property to be annexed begins along the centerline of Besstown Road at the corner of the Kiser Melvin  property (Deed 500)(PIN # 

3527042319) and follows the centerline Northeast for 1,426.5 linear feet until terminating at the corner of the property owned by DCA 

Real Estate Holdings, LLC (Deed 503) (PIN# 3527262792). The property then turns South at 27 degrees 49 minutes and 17 seconds, East 

for 510.87 linear feet. After 510.87 linear feet, the property boundary heads South at 34 degrees, 33 minutes and 25 seconds, East for 

150.63 linear feet (Deed 505). At this point, the property turns South at 51 degrees, 34 minutes and 43 seconds, West for 1,1187.47 

linear feet along the Kiser Property (PIN # 3527145654). The boundary then returns to the starting point moving North at 61 degrees 19 

minutes and 4 seconds West for 379 linear feet until closing the loop. 

 

The total site area includes 14.155 acres of vacant land, zoned Rural. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

16

Item 7.



 
 

2 
 

 

17

Item 7.



 

City of Bessemer City, North Carolina 

Conditional District Rezoning Staff Report 

Planning Board Agenda Item July 3, 2023 

City Council Agenda Item August 14, 2023 

Applicant:  Exponential Development 

 

Request: 

 

To review and make a recommendation on the rezoning of one parcel of land, Gaston County 

Tax Map PID#151220 and is approximately 14.155 acres. Parcel # 151220 is currently zoned 

Rural and applicant is requesting zoning amendment to Urban Residential Conditional District to 

accommodate the future development of a multifamily community.  

 

Background Information: 

 

The preliminary site plan for the development includes one parcel of land located on Bess Town 

Rd. The site plan includes nine total structures. Eight structures will be utilized for multifamily 

residential housing and one structure will be utilized as a community amenity clubhouse. The site 

plan also includes three access points for the development off Bess Town Rd. and landscape 

buffering to adjacent properties. Applicant is proposing to develop approximately 228 apartment 

units with approximately 2.52 acres of open space. 

Current regulations within section 2.8.C of the Bessemer City Land Development Code state that 

no multifamily development is to be developed on a site larger than three (3) acres. The purpose 

of this application for a conditional district is to develop a multifamily community on a site 

approximately 12.11 acres and for a percentage of the units to have front loaded garage entries. 

Approximately eight (8) of the sixty four (64) units within the northern development site are 

proposed to have front entry garages. 

18

Item 7.



Proposal: The Applicant has submitted a Conditional District application proposing to develop a 

multifamily residential community of eight apartment buildings on one site. A summary of the 

proposal is as follows: 

 

Buildings: There will be nine buildings constructed on site as part of the multifamily project. Eight 

buildings will be utilized for housing consisting of five buildings with approximately twenty-four 

(24) units and three buildings consisting of approximately thirty-six (36) units. One building will 

be utilized as an amenity clubhouse.  

Roads: There are no right of ways proposed with the project. There are three primary ingress and 

egress access driveways from Bess Town Rd. There will be two community parking areas that will 

be split by undisturbed wetlands. One driveway will access the parking area for buildings A 

through D and two driveways will access the parking area for buildings E through H. and the 

clubhouse.   

 A seven (7) foot wide sidewalk is proposed to be constructed along all pedestrian access 

points and vehicular parking areas for each building.  

Utilities – Water and Sewer: The applicant is proposing the development to be served by City of 

Bessemer City Water and Sewer services.  

 Public Works Director has indicated that City water and sewer will need to be extended to 

the site from its current location on Bess Town Rd. Water service to the site is feasible with 

an extension, but a sewer pump station will need to be installed within the development 

site for adequate service of the development. 

 Applicants will pay the water, sewer extension costs, pump station costs, tap fees, system 

development fees, and all other utility development costs.  

Stormwater Drainage: Drainage will be engineered according to the best management practices at 

the time of construction and will be handled through a curb and gutter system located within the 

proposed parking areas of the residential development. Two storm water control measure ponds 

are proposed to be installed within the development. The property is subject to adopted stormwater 

management guidelines. 

Open Space: Open Space requirements for the proposed site are less than one (1) acre of open 

space. Applicant proposes 2.52 acres of open space and an amenity clubhouse.  

Land Use Buffer: There is a 20 ft. landscape buffer proposed around the development that is 

proposed to consist of current vegetation. In all cases, if less than the required amount of vegetation 

buffering is determined, then the developer will be responsible for meeting the 20-foot 

requirement. 

Parcel Site 

Area 

Watershed Existing 

Use 

Proposed 

Use 

Number 

of Units 

Maximum 

Density 

Proposed 

Density 

Required 

Open 

Space 

Proposed 

Open 

Space 

151220 15.155 Long 

Creek 

Vacant Apartments 228 N/A N/A <1 acre 2.52 acres 

19

Item 7.



Landscaping: There is approximately 1,423 linear feet of right of way frontage for the 

development. Per the Bessemer City land development code, the development is responsible for 

one (1) canopy tree per forty (40) linear feet which results in approximately thirty-six (36) canopy 

trees to be planted. The developer has proposed to install thirty-six (36) canopy trees along Bess 

Town Rd. and within the proposed open space along Bess Town Rd.   

 

Parking Lot Landscaping Parking Spaces Required Amount Proposed Amount 

Canopy Trees 370 37 37 

Understory Trees 370 52.8 53 

Shrubs 370 740 740 

 

Traffic Impact: 

Land use  Density Daily Am 

Enter 

AM 

Exit 

AM 

Total 

PM 

Enter 

PM 

Exit 

PM 

Total 

Multifamily 228 Units 1,537 22 69 91 73 43 116 

 

Based on the number of PM peak hour trips, 116, a Traffic Impact Analysis is required to be 

conducted. The applicant has requested permission to conduct the traffic study in August 2023, 

once Gaston County Schools are back in session to more accurately account for potential traffic 

volume and possible improvements. City staff has agreed to this timeline. 

Petitioner shall install improvements as set forth in the TIA and agreed upon by the City and 

NCDOT prior to eighty (80%) percent project completion.  

Staff Recommendation:  

 

1. Approve preliminary site plan as submitted. 

2. Recommend that City Council rezone requested parcel to Urban Residential Conditional 

District (URCD).  

3. Recommend that City Council satellite annex requested parcel into incorporated city limits.  

 

Exhibits: 

 

1. Bess Town Rd. Multifamily Project Application Packet. 

2. Development Services Staff Report.  

 

Recommended Effective Date: August 14, 2023 

20

Item 7.



 

 

 

 

21

Item 7.



NCGS MONUMENT
"SUNNYSIDE"
N:581,837.29
E:1,313,419.21
U.S. SURVEY FEET

FOUND
1
2" IRON ROD
(NOT HELD)

(12.6' WEST OF CORNER)

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
XXXX

X
XXXXXXX

XXXXXXXX
XX

X

4' BARBED WIRE FENCE

4' BARBED WIRE FENCE

WILLIAM CARL HOVIS ESTATE
WILL BOOK 2018E, PAGE 1501
DEED BOOK 2444, PAGE 271

PARCEL 151220
14.155 ACRES

(616,598 SQ. FT.)
INCLUDING 0.987 ACRES (43,010 SQ. FT.)

IN THE RIGHT OF WAY OF BESS TOWN ROAD

MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 2561, PAGE 78
PARCEL 151381

MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 5371, PAGE 1347
PARCEL 151390

1465 PUETTS CHAPEL RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151222
802 BESS TOWN RD

GARY GRANT FAMILY FARM LLC
DEED BOOK 4944, PAGE 623

PARCEL 151218
821 BESS TOWN RD

JERIMIAH C SMITH AND
MEGAN A SMITH

DEED BOOK 5204, PAGE 2490
LOT 1 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17

PARCEL 305075
719 BESS TOWN RD

ROBERT AUSTIN BOWEN
DEED BOOK 4867, PAGE 2059

LOT 2 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17
PARCEL 305076

707 BESS TOWN RD

GARY GRANT FAMILY LLC
DEED BOOK 4731, PAGE 2384

PARCEL 151532
649 BESS TOWN RD

ATT EQUIPMENT
ATTACHED TO POLE

4' ELECTRIC W
IRE FENCE

FOUND
#4 REBAR

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151219
755 BESS TOWN RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151214
819 BESS TOWN RD

S51° 43' 43"W             1118.47'S51° 43' 43"W             1118.47'

LINE PER DEED
BOOK 5371, PAGE 1347

LINE PER DEED
BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740
(TRACT TWO)

LINE PER DEED
BOOK 2444, PAGE 271

APPARENT GAP

N61° 19' 04"W
             379.00' (TO

TAL)

S2
7°

 4
9'

 1
7"

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
10

.8
7'

 (T
O

TA
L)

39
.5

3'

46
6.

34
'

S34° 33' 25"E
150.63'

29.55'

349.45'

N29° 47' 19"E       
      4

00.46'

N35° 54' 47"E

72.99'

N44° 44' 59"E

80.93'

N52° 21' 09"E
60.06'

N58° 45' 47"E             132.73' N62° 06' 43"E             95.08'
N57° 16' 05"E             123.62' N44° 16' 12"E

79.15'

N36° 28' 03"E

71.94'

N29° 25' 02"E

69.50'

N24° 08' 28"E

69.38'

N21° 24' 52"E     
     

   1
70.66'

TIE LINE
S55° 22' 11"E

30.08'

T

MAIL BOX

AS
PH

AL
T 

D
R

IV
E

AS
PH

AL
T 

D
R

IV
E

5.00'

5.00'

14
5.

63
'

SET
#5 REBAR

FOUND FENCE POST
CLAMPED AT TOP

FOUND STONE
(DISTURBED)

SET #5 REBAR
(WITNESS)

SET #5 REBAR
(WITNESS)

FOUND
1" IRON ROD

6' TALL POLE

S45° 47' 18"E             9628.06' (G
R

ID
)

G
R

ID
 TIE LIN

E

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

S29° 47' 19"W       
      3

98.28'

S35° 54' 47"W
69.07'

S44° 44' 59"W

76.62'

S52° 21' 09"W
56.39' S58° 45' 47"W             130.17' S62° 06' 43"W             94.20'

N62° 06' 43"E
18.19'

N62° 06' 43"E
19.46'

S57° 16' 05"W             128.31'
S44° 16' 12"W

84.61'

S36° 28' 03"W

75.83'

S29° 25' 02"W

72.73'

S24° 08' 28"W

71.48'

S21° 24' 52"W     
     

   1
45.51'

AREA IN R/W OF BESS
TOWN ROAD = 0.987 ACRES
(43,010 SQ. FT.)

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

TIE LINE
S28° 29' 58"E
35.09'

50' FRONT SETBACK PER ZONING

50' REAR SETBACK PER ZONING

15' SIDE SETBACK PER ZO
NING

15
' S

ID
E 

SE
TB

AC
K 

PE
R

 Z
O

N
IN

G

FOUND #5 REBAR
4.6' TALL

(NOT HELD)
(17.9' SOUTH
OF CORNER)

FOUND 1" PIPE
1.5' TALL

(NOT HELD)
(17.8' SOUTH
OF CORNER)

FOUND #4 REBAR
NC GRID COORDINATES
N: 575,123.52
E: 1,320,320.29
U.S. SURVEY FEET

4' BARBED WIRE FENCE
CROSSES PROPERTY LINE

4' BARBED WIRE FENCE
CROSSES PROPERTY LINE

X

X

X

X

X

X

X4' ELECTRIC W
IRE FENCE

S29° 38' 56"W       
      3

01.05'
TIE LINE

FOUND
#4 REBAR

FOUND
#4 REBAR

 C  2023, THE SURVEY COMPANY, INC. ALL RIGHTS
RESERVED. COPIES OF THE ORIGINAL OF THIS
DOCUMENT DISTRIBUTED BY THE SURVEYOR BEAR
THE ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND EMBOSSED SEAL OF
THE SURVEYOR.

VICINITY MAP      NOT TO SCALE

MAP REFERENCES

1. MAP TITLED "SURVEY FOR MARVIN ROGER HOVIS AND WILLIAM CARL HOVIS" DATED
DECEMBER 09, 1994 PREPARED BY CLONINGER SURVEYING AND MAPPING, SIGNED AND
SEALED BY MICHAEL LARRY CLONINGER PLS L-3190.
NOT OF PUBLIC RECORD.

2. MAP TITLED "BOUNDARY SURVEY OF 42.11 ACRES WYANT PROPERTY" DATED MAY 14,
1990, PREPARED BY  DRAKE SURVEYING AND RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 45, PAGE 95 OF
THE GASTON COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY.

3. MAP TITLED "SUBDIVISION MADE AT THE REQUEST OF JERIMIAH SMITH - PROPERTY OF:
ROBERT AUSTIN BOWEN" DATED JANUARY 28, 2021 PREPARED BY GRAY SURVEYING
COMPANY, INC AND RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 93, PAGE 17 OF THE GASTON COUNTY
PUBLIC REGISTRY.

I CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN
ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION
RECORDED IN BOOK 2444, PAGE 271; THAT THE  BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED
ARE INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION IN PLAT BOOK 45, PAGE 95; PLAT
BOOK 93, PAGE 17; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION IS GREATER THAN 1:10,000
AND THE POSITIONAL ACCURACY IS 0.055; AND THAT THIS MAP MEETS THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE STANDARDS OF PRACTICE FOR LAND SURVEYING IN
NORTH CAROLINA (21 NCAC 56. 1600).

I, CHARLES S. LOGUE, CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS DRAWN UNDER MY
SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL GPS SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION
AND THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION WAS USED TO PERFORM THE SURVEY:

(1) CLASS OF SURVEY:  A
(2) POSITIONAL ACCURACY:

HORIZONTAL POSITIONAL ACCURACY AT 95% CONFIDENCE: 0.055
VERTICAL POSITIONAL ACCURACY AT 95% CONFIDENCE: 0.074

(3) TYPE OF GPS FIELD PROCEDURE: REAL TIME KINEMATIC
(4) DATES OF SURVEY: MAY 11, 2023 THRU MAY 19, 2023
(5) DATUM/EPOCH: HORIZONTAL = NAD83 (2011)

   VERTICAL = NAVD 88
(6) PUBLISHED/FIXED-CONTROL USED: NC VRS CORS
(7) GEOID MODEL: GEOID12B(CONUS)
(8) COMBINED GRID FACTOR(S): 0.9998337885
(9) UNITS: U.S. SURVEY FEET

CHARLES S. LOGUE, PLS L-4212                                               DATE

GENERAL NOTES

1. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL MEASUREMENTS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. ALL AREAS ARE CALCULATED BY THE COORDINATE COMPUTATION METHOD.

3. THIS PLAT IS NOT FOR RECORDATION AS PER G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.

4. ALL CORNERS MONUMENTED AS SHOWN.

5. SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED WITHIN FLOODZONE (X) AS DEFINED BY FEMA-FIRM
COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 3710352700J, REVISED SEPTEMBER 28, 2007.

6. SUBJECT PROPERTY ZONING:  R (RURAL) PER GASTON COUNTY GIS

SETBACKS PER LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE
CITY OF BESSEMER CITY, NC FOR R R(URAL) ZONING

FRONT: 50'
SIDE: 15' (SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS AND MANUFACTUED HOUSING

25' (ALL OTHER USES)
REAR: 50

7. BASIS OF HORIZONTAL DATUM IS NC GRID - NAD 83(2011). VRS DERIVED.

8. BASIS OF VERTICAL DATUM IS NAVD88. VRS DERIVED.

9. THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED WITHOUT BENEFIT OF TITLE COMMITMENT OR REPORT.

10. THE SURVEY COMPANY, INCORPORATED IS RESPONSIBLE ONLY FOR THE LOCATION OF
ABOVE GROUND MARKINGS AND NOT THE ACTUAL LOCATION OF UTILITIES BEING
MARKED. THERE MAY BE OTHER UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ON OR SERVING THIS SITE
OTHER THAN THOSE SHOWN. BEFORE DOING ANY DIGGING CALL NC ONECALL (811).

LEGEND

LINETYPES USED

PROPERTY LINE SURVEYED

PROPERTY LINE NOT SURVEYED

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

SETBACK LINE

OVERHEAD POWER LINE

FENCE LINE

SYMBOLS USED

FOUND PROPERTY CORNER

SET 5/8" REBAR OR PK NAIL

CALCULATED POINT

POWER POLE

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

SIGN

R/W R/W R/W

T

BE
SS

 T
OW

N 
RO

AD

DAVIS RD

PU
ET

TS
 C

HAP
EL

 R
D

DAVIS
PLANTTION RD

LEESVILLE

AVE

N 14TH ST

D
AM

ER
O

N
 R

D

AB
SH

ER
 R

D

DAMERON RD

SCOTT AND

DAWSON LN

SITE

05/19/2023

22

Item 7.



PLANNING | LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE | CIVIL ENGINEERING | URBAN DESIGN 

South Tryon Street, Suite 1400 

Charlotte, NC 28202 

Office: 704-376-1555 

colejeneststone.com 

 

  

 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: 6/9/2023 

To: Nathan Hestor, Bessemer City 

From: Aaron Cook, PE  

Subject: Bessemer City Multifamily Traffic Memo  

 Exponential Development  

  

 

This memorandum has been prepared to assess the potential traffic impacts of the proposed multifamily 

residential development in Bessemer City. The development is generally located east of Bess Town Road and 

south of Roland Conner Lane in Bessemer City, NC.  

 

The general study area and development location is shown in Figure 1.  

 

Figure 1 - Study Area 

 

 

General 

Development 

Area 

Legend 

Proposed Development Access 

23

Item 7.



 

PLANNING | LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE | CIVIL ENGINEERING | URBAN DESIGN 

 

 

 

 

 

  J u n e  9 ,  2 0 2 3   2  

 

 

Existing Conditions  

 

Table 1 below displays information regarding the surrounding transportation facilities. The intersection of 

Bess Town Road and Roland Conner Lane is an unsignalized intersection without turn lanes. The land uses 

surrounding the site largely consists of single-family residential.  

Table 1 – Existing Roadway Information 

Road Name 
Route 

Number 

Typical 

Cross 

Section 

Functional 

Classification 

Speed 

limit 

Maintained 

By 

2021 

AADT 

Bess Town 

Road 
SR-1446 2-lane 

Secondary 

Route 

35 - 55 

mph 
NCDOT 850 

 

Development Details 

 

The proposed development will contain 228 multi-family units over 13.17 acres with 380 parking spaces. The 

proposed site plan is attached. Access to the development is assumed to be via three full movement street 

connections located along Bess Town Road, approximately 300 feet, 575 feet, and 1,200 feet south of Roland 

Connor Lane, respectively. The trip generation for the proposed site is shown in Table 2. The trip generation 

was completed using the Trip Generation Manual, 11th Edition, Institute of Transportation Engineers. The site 

is expected to generate 1537 trips per day, 91 trips during the AM peak hour, and 116 trips during the PM 

peak hour. 

 

Table 2 – Trip Generation  

 

According to NCDOT policy, left and right turn lanes are typically only considered for roads with an average 

daily traffic of 4,000 vehicles per day on any secondary route. Because the existing traffic plus the expected 

traffic generated by the proposed development is less than this threshold, turn lanes are not recommended at 

the proposed site driveways.   

 

Summary 

Based on the trip generation for the proposed development and the driveway location, it is not expected that 

the development will introduce deficiencies that require intersection geometry or traffic control improvements. 

If required by the Town, the development team will conduct a traffic impact study once Gaston County 

schools are back in session for the 2023-2024 academic year. 

Land Use (ITE Code) Density Daily 
AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total 

Multifamily House Low-Rise 

(220) 
228 Units 1537 22 69 91 73 43 116 

24

Item 7.



NCGS MONUMENT
"SUNNYSIDE"
N:581,837.29
E:1,313,419.21
U.S. SURVEY FEET

FOUND
1
2" IRON ROD
(NOT HELD)

(12.6' WEST OF CORNER)

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
XXXX

X
XXXXXXX

XXXXXXXX
XX

X

4' BARBED WIRE FENCE

4' BARBED WIRE FENCE

WILLIAM CARL HOVIS ESTATE
WILL BOOK 2018E, PAGE 1501
DEED BOOK 2444, PAGE 271

PARCEL 151220
14.155 ACRES

(616,598 SQ. FT.)
INCLUDING 0.987 ACRES (43,010 SQ. FT.)

IN THE RIGHT OF WAY OF BESS TOWN ROAD

MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 2561, PAGE 78
PARCEL 151381

MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 5371, PAGE 1347
PARCEL 151390

1465 PUETTS CHAPEL RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151222
802 BESS TOWN RD

GARY GRANT FAMILY FARM LLC
DEED BOOK 4944, PAGE 623

PARCEL 151218
821 BESS TOWN RD

JERIMIAH C SMITH AND
MEGAN A SMITH

DEED BOOK 5204, PAGE 2490
LOT 1 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17

PARCEL 305075
719 BESS TOWN RD

ROBERT AUSTIN BOWEN
DEED BOOK 4867, PAGE 2059

LOT 2 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17
PARCEL 305076

707 BESS TOWN RD

GARY GRANT FAMILY LLC
DEED BOOK 4731, PAGE 2384

PARCEL 151532
649 BESS TOWN RD

ATT EQUIPMENT
ATTACHED TO POLE

4' ELECTRIC W
IRE FENCE

FOUND
#4 REBAR

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151219
755 BESS TOWN RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151214
819 BESS TOWN RD

S51° 43' 43"W             1118.47'S51° 43' 43"W             1118.47'

LINE PER DEED
BOOK 5371, PAGE 1347

LINE PER DEED
BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740
(TRACT TWO)

LINE PER DEED
BOOK 2444, PAGE 271

APPARENT GAP

N61° 19' 04"W
             379.00' (TO

TAL)

S2
7°

 4
9'

 1
7"

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
10

.8
7'

 (T
O

TA
L)

39
.5

3'

46
6.

34
'

S34° 33' 25"E
150.63'

29.55'

349.45'

N29° 47' 19"E       
      4

00.46'

N35° 54' 47"E

72.99'

N44° 44' 59"E

80.93'

N52° 21' 09"E
60.06'

N58° 45' 47"E             132.73' N62° 06' 43"E             95.08'
N57° 16' 05"E             123.62' N44° 16' 12"E

79.15'

N36° 28' 03"E

71.94'

N29° 25' 02"E

69.50'

N24° 08' 28"E

69.38'

N21° 24' 52"E     
     

   1
70.66'

TIE LINE
S55° 22' 11"E

30.08'

T

MAIL BOX

AS
PH

AL
T 

D
R

IV
E

AS
PH

AL
T 

D
R

IV
E

5.00'

5.00'

14
5.

63
'

SET
#5 REBAR

FOUND FENCE POST
CLAMPED AT TOP

FOUND STONE
(DISTURBED)

SET #5 REBAR
(WITNESS)

SET #5 REBAR
(WITNESS)

FOUND
1" IRON ROD

6' TALL POLE

S45° 47' 18"E             9628.06' (G
R

ID
)

G
R

ID
 TIE LIN

E

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

S29° 47' 19"W       
      3

98.28'

S35° 54' 47"W
69.07'

S44° 44' 59"W

76.62'

S52° 21' 09"W
56.39' S58° 45' 47"W             130.17' S62° 06' 43"W             94.20'

N62° 06' 43"E
18.19'

N62° 06' 43"E
19.46'

S57° 16' 05"W             128.31'
S44° 16' 12"W

84.61'

S36° 28' 03"W

75.83'

S29° 25' 02"W

72.73'

S24° 08' 28"W

71.48'

S21° 24' 52"W     
     

   1
45.51'

AREA IN R/W OF BESS
TOWN ROAD = 0.987 ACRES
(43,010 SQ. FT.)

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

TIE LINE
S28° 29' 58"E
35.09'

50' FRONT SETBACK PER ZONING

50' REAR SETBACK PER ZONING

15' SIDE SETBACK PER ZO
NING

15
' S

ID
E 

SE
TB

AC
K 

PE
R

 Z
O

N
IN

G

FOUND #5 REBAR
4.6' TALL

(NOT HELD)
(17.9' SOUTH
OF CORNER)

FOUND 1" PIPE
1.5' TALL

(NOT HELD)
(17.8' SOUTH
OF CORNER)

FOUND #4 REBAR
NC GRID COORDINATES
N: 575,123.52
E: 1,320,320.29
U.S. SURVEY FEET

4' BARBED WIRE FENCE
CROSSES PROPERTY LINE

4' BARBED WIRE FENCE
CROSSES PROPERTY LINE

X

X

X

X

X

X

X4' ELECTRIC W
IRE FENCE

S29° 38' 56"W       
      3

01.05'
TIE LINE

FOUND
#4 REBAR

FOUND
#4 REBAR

 C  2023, THE SURVEY COMPANY, INC. ALL RIGHTS
RESERVED. COPIES OF THE ORIGINAL OF THIS
DOCUMENT DISTRIBUTED BY THE SURVEYOR BEAR
THE ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND EMBOSSED SEAL OF
THE SURVEYOR.

VICINITY MAP      NOT TO SCALE

MAP REFERENCES

1. MAP TITLED "SURVEY FOR MARVIN ROGER HOVIS AND WILLIAM CARL HOVIS" DATED
DECEMBER 09, 1994 PREPARED BY CLONINGER SURVEYING AND MAPPING, SIGNED AND
SEALED BY MICHAEL LARRY CLONINGER PLS L-3190.
NOT OF PUBLIC RECORD.

2. MAP TITLED "BOUNDARY SURVEY OF 42.11 ACRES WYANT PROPERTY" DATED MAY 14,
1990, PREPARED BY  DRAKE SURVEYING AND RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 45, PAGE 95 OF
THE GASTON COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY.

3. MAP TITLED "SUBDIVISION MADE AT THE REQUEST OF JERIMIAH SMITH - PROPERTY OF:
ROBERT AUSTIN BOWEN" DATED JANUARY 28, 2021 PREPARED BY GRAY SURVEYING
COMPANY, INC AND RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 93, PAGE 17 OF THE GASTON COUNTY
PUBLIC REGISTRY.

I CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN
ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION
RECORDED IN BOOK 2444, PAGE 271; THAT THE  BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED
ARE INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION IN PLAT BOOK 45, PAGE 95; PLAT
BOOK 93, PAGE 17; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION IS GREATER THAN 1:10,000
AND THE POSITIONAL ACCURACY IS 0.055; AND THAT THIS MAP MEETS THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE STANDARDS OF PRACTICE FOR LAND SURVEYING IN
NORTH CAROLINA (21 NCAC 56. 1600).

I, CHARLES S. LOGUE, CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS DRAWN UNDER MY
SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL GPS SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION
AND THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION WAS USED TO PERFORM THE SURVEY:

(1) CLASS OF SURVEY:  A
(2) POSITIONAL ACCURACY:

HORIZONTAL POSITIONAL ACCURACY AT 95% CONFIDENCE: 0.055
VERTICAL POSITIONAL ACCURACY AT 95% CONFIDENCE: 0.074

(3) TYPE OF GPS FIELD PROCEDURE: REAL TIME KINEMATIC
(4) DATES OF SURVEY: MAY 11, 2023 THRU MAY 19, 2023
(5) DATUM/EPOCH: HORIZONTAL = NAD83 (2011)

   VERTICAL = NAVD 88
(6) PUBLISHED/FIXED-CONTROL USED: NC VRS CORS
(7) GEOID MODEL: GEOID12B(CONUS)
(8) COMBINED GRID FACTOR(S): 0.9998337885
(9) UNITS: U.S. SURVEY FEET

CHARLES S. LOGUE, PLS L-4212                                               DATE

GENERAL NOTES

1. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL MEASUREMENTS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. ALL AREAS ARE CALCULATED BY THE COORDINATE COMPUTATION METHOD.

3. THIS PLAT IS NOT FOR RECORDATION AS PER G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.

4. ALL CORNERS MONUMENTED AS SHOWN.

5. SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED WITHIN FLOODZONE (X) AS DEFINED BY FEMA-FIRM
COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 3710352700J, REVISED SEPTEMBER 28, 2007.

6. SUBJECT PROPERTY ZONING:  R (RURAL) PER GASTON COUNTY GIS

SETBACKS PER LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE
CITY OF BESSEMER CITY, NC FOR R R(URAL) ZONING

FRONT: 50'
SIDE: 15' (SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS AND MANUFACTUED HOUSING

25' (ALL OTHER USES)
REAR: 50

7. BASIS OF HORIZONTAL DATUM IS NC GRID - NAD 83(2011). VRS DERIVED.

8. BASIS OF VERTICAL DATUM IS NAVD88. VRS DERIVED.

9. THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED WITHOUT BENEFIT OF TITLE COMMITMENT OR REPORT.

10. THE SURVEY COMPANY, INCORPORATED IS RESPONSIBLE ONLY FOR THE LOCATION OF
ABOVE GROUND MARKINGS AND NOT THE ACTUAL LOCATION OF UTILITIES BEING
MARKED. THERE MAY BE OTHER UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ON OR SERVING THIS SITE
OTHER THAN THOSE SHOWN. BEFORE DOING ANY DIGGING CALL NC ONECALL (811).

LEGEND

LINETYPES USED

PROPERTY LINE SURVEYED

PROPERTY LINE NOT SURVEYED

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

SETBACK LINE

OVERHEAD POWER LINE

FENCE LINE

SYMBOLS USED

FOUND PROPERTY CORNER

SET 5/8" REBAR OR PK NAIL

CALCULATED POINT

POWER POLE

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

SIGN

R/W R/W R/W

T

BE
SS

 T
OW

N 
RO

AD

DAVIS RD

PU
ET

TS
 C

HAP
EL

 R
D

DAVIS
PLANTTION RD

LEESVILLE

AVE

N 14TH ST

D
AM

ER
O

N
 R

D

AB
SH

ER
 R

D

DAMERON RD

SCOTT AND

DAWSON LN

SITE

05/19/2023

25

Item 7.



MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 2561, PAGE 78
PARCEL 151381

MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 5371, PAGE 1347
PARCEL 151390

1465 PUETTS CHAPEL RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151222
802 BESS TOWN RD

GARY GRANT FAMILY FARM LLC
DEED BOOK 4944, PAGE 623

PARCEL 151218
821 BESS TOWN RD

JERIMIAH C SMITH AND
MEGAN A SMITH

DEED BOOK 5204, PAGE 2490
LOT 1 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17

PARCEL 305075
719 BESS TOWN RD

ROBERT AUSTIN BOWEN
DEED BOOK 4867, PAGE 2059

LOT 2 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17
PARCEL 305076

707 BESS TOWN RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151219
755 BESS TOWN RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151214
819 BESS TOWN RD

T

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: COMMERCIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: COMMERCIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

FILE NO.:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

REVISIONS:

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
02

3,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\C
JS

_P
R\

_P
ro

po
sa

ls\
20

23
\3

29
25

.2
3 

- E
xp

on
en

tia
l E

qu
ity

 B
es

se
m

er
 C

ity
\4

00
 - 

De
sig

n\
10

 - 
Pl

an
s (

CA
D)

\3
 - 

Sh
ee

ts
\R

Z-
10

0_
EX

IS
TI

N
G 

CO
N

DI
TI

O
N

S 
PL

AN
.d

w
g 

6/
13

/2
02

3 
10

:3
7:

46
 A

M

EXPONENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT

6401 CARMEL ROAD, SUITE 202
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226
704-777-8888

BESSEMER CITY
MULTI-FAMILY 

BESS TOWN ROAD
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016 
PID# 151220

04925.00

1" = 60'

06/13/2023

DBT

DBT

SPP

BO
LT

ON & MENK, INC.

C
O R P O R A T E

N
O

R T H  C A R O L IN
A

SEAL
F-1409
C-596

d/ b/ a Co leJ enest  & S t one

200 SOUTH TRYON STREET, SUITE 1400
CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA  28202

Phone: (704) 376-1555
Email: info@colejeneststone.com

www.bolton-menk.com

ALTA/ASCM LAND TITLE SURVEY SURVEY ISSUE DATE MAY, 19,2023. PROVIDED BY THE SURVEY
COMPANY, INC., 4105-B STUART ANDREW BLVD, CHARLOTTE, NC 28217 , PH:704-561-9970

N

No. 1864

NO

RTH CAROL INA

S E A N O
P. P A

NEREG
IS

TE
RE

D

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT

06/13/2023

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

THIS PLAN IS SCHEMATIC IN NATURE AND LOCATIONS
OF ROADS, LOTS AND OTHER AREAS AND IMPROVEMENTS ARE
SUBJECT TO FINAL DETERMINATION ON PRELIMINARY AND FINAL
PLAN.

SCALE:

0 60'30' 120'

1"=60'

N

EXISTING
CONDITIONS PLAN

RZ-100

26

Item 7.



MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 2561, PAGE 78
PARCEL 151381

MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 5371, PAGE 1347
PARCEL 151390

1465 PUETTS CHAPEL RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151222
802 BESS TOWN RD

GARY GRANT FAMILY FARM LLC
DEED BOOK 4944, PAGE 623

PARCEL 151218
821 BESS TOWN RD

JERIMIAH C SMITH AND
MEGAN A SMITH

DEED BOOK 5204, PAGE 2490
LOT 1 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17

PARCEL 305075
719 BESS TOWN RD

ROBERT AUSTIN BOWEN
DEED BOOK 4867, PAGE 2059

LOT 2 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17
PARCEL 305076

707 BESS TOWN RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151219
755 BESS TOWN RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151214
819 BESS TOWN RD

T

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: COMMERCIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: COMMERCIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 2561, PAGE 78
PARCEL 151381

MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 5371, PAGE 1347
PARCEL 151390

1465 PUETTS CHAPEL RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151222
802 BESS TOWN RD

GARY GRANT FAMILY FARM LLC
DEED BOOK 4944, PAGE 623

PARCEL 151218
821 BESS TOWN RD

JERIMIAH C SMITH AND
MEGAN A SMITH

DEED BOOK 5204, PAGE 2490
LOT 1 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17

PARCEL 305075
719 BESS TOWN RD

ROBERT AUSTIN BOWEN
DEED BOOK 4867, PAGE 2059

LOT 2 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17
PARCEL 305076

707 BESS TOWN RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151219
755 BESS TOWN RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151214
819 BESS TOWN RD

T

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: COMMERCIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: COMMERCIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

FILE NO.:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

REVISIONS:

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
02

3,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\C
JS

_P
R\

_P
ro

po
sa

ls\
20

23
\3

29
25

.2
3 

- E
xp

on
en

tia
l E

qu
ity

 B
es

se
m

er
 C

ity
\4

00
 - 

De
sig

n\
10

 - 
Pl

an
s (

CA
D)

\1
 - 

M
as

te
r\

C-
TB

-R
EZ

O
N

IN
G.

dw
g 

9/
13

/2
01

6 
11

:3
5:

06
 A

M

EXPONENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT

6401 CARMEL ROAD, SUITE 202
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226
704-777-8888

BESSEMER CITY
MULTI-FAMILY 

BESS TOWN ROAD
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016 
PID# 151220

04925.00

1" = 60'

06/13/2023

DBT

DBT

SPP

BO
LT

ON & MENK, INC.

C
O R P O R A T E

N
O

R T H  C A R O L IN
A

SEAL
F-1409
C-596

d/ b/ a Co leJ enest  & S t one

200 SOUTH TRYON STREET, SUITE 1400
CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA  28202

Phone: (704) 376-1555
Email: info@colejeneststone.com

www.bolton-menk.com

ALTA/ASCM LAND TITLE SURVEY SURVEY ISSUE DATE MAY, 19,2023. PROVIDED BY THE SURVEY
COMPANY, INC., 4105-B STUART ANDREW BLVD, CHARLOTTE, NC 28217 , PH:704-561-9970

N

No. 1864

NO

RTH CAROL INA

S E A N O
P. P A

NEREG
IS

TE
RE

D

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT

06/13/2023

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

THIS PLAN IS SCHEMATIC IN NATURE AND LOCATIONS
OF ROADS, LOTS AND OTHER AREAS AND IMPROVEMENTS ARE
SUBJECT TO FINAL DETERMINATION ON PRELIMINARY AND FINAL
PLAN.

SKETCH PLAN

BESSEMER CITY MULTI-FAMILY
BESSTOWN ROAD BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
151220
WILLIAM CARL HOVIS ESTATE CO. - 
THOMAS HOVIS AND DEBORAH 
MOORE
EXPONENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
704.777.8888

BOLTON & MENK DBA COLE JENEST & STONE
704-376-1555

RURAL (R)
URBAN RESIDENTIAL (UR-CZ)

 CROWDERS MTN TOWNSHIP
±14.155 AC
±13.168 AC
±0.987 AC

APARTMENT / MULTI-FAMILY
45'-0" MAX
3 STORIES
228  (137 - 1 BEDROOM UNITS, 
91- 2BEDROOM UNITS)

30'
30'
15'
30'

N/A 20'
20' 20'

SEE SHEETS RZ-300

318 SPACES
(137)  1 SPACE / BDRM
(91) 2 SPACES / BDRM

360 TOTAL (1.58 SPACES / UNIT)

21 SPACES (9VAN ACCESSIBLE)
21 PROVIDED (9 VAN ACCESSIBLE).

36 SPACES  (10% OF VEHICULAR)
36 SPACES

6.51 ACRES (1/35 ACRES PER UNIT)
2.52ACRES WITH PAYMENT IN LIEU*

SCALE:

0 60'30' 120'

1"=60'

N

RZ-200

27

Item 7.



FILE NO.:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

REVISIONS:

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
02

3,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\C
JS

_P
R\

_P
ro

po
sa

ls\
20

23
\3

29
25

.2
3 

- E
xp

on
en

tia
l E

qu
ity

 B
es

se
m

er
 C

ity
\4

00
 - 

De
sig

n\
10

 - 
Pl

an
s (

CA
D)

\1
 - 

M
as

te
r\

C-
TB

-R
EZ

O
N

IN
G.

dw
g 

9/
13

/2
01

6 
11

:3
5:

06
 A

M

EXPONENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT

6401 CARMEL ROAD, SUITE 202
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226
704-777-8888

BESSEMER CITY
MULTI-FAMILY 

BESS TOWN ROAD
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016 
PID# 151220

04925.00

1" = 60'

06/13/2023

DBT

DBT

SPP

BO
LT

ON & MENK, INC.

C
O R P O R A T E

N
O

R T H  C A R O L IN
A

SEAL
F-1409
C-596

d/ b/ a Co leJ enest  & S t one

200 SOUTH TRYON STREET, SUITE 1400
CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA  28202

Phone: (704) 376-1555
Email: info@colejeneststone.com

www.bolton-menk.com

ALTA/ASCM LAND TITLE SURVEY SURVEY ISSUE DATE MAY, 19,2023. PROVIDED BY THE SURVEY
COMPANY, INC., 4105-B STUART ANDREW BLVD, CHARLOTTE, NC 28217 , PH:704-561-9970

N

No. 1864

NO

RTH CAROL INA

S E A N O
P. P A

NEREG
IS

TE
RE

D

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT

06/13/2023

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

THIS PLAN IS SCHEMATIC IN NATURE AND LOCATIONS
OF ROADS, LOTS AND OTHER AREAS AND IMPROVEMENTS ARE
SUBJECT TO FINAL DETERMINATION ON PRELIMINARY AND FINAL
PLAN.

DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS

SCALE:

0 60'30' 120'

1"=60'

N

RZ-201

“ ”
“ ” “ ”

“ ”

28

Item 7.



MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 2561, PAGE 78
PARCEL 151381

MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 5371, PAGE 1347
PARCEL 151390

1465 PUETTS CHAPEL RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151222
802 BESS TOWN RD

GARY GRANT FAMILY FARM LLC
DEED BOOK 4944, PAGE 623

PARCEL 151218
821 BESS TOWN RD

JERIMIAH C SMITH AND
MEGAN A SMITH

DEED BOOK 5204, PAGE 2490
LOT 1 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17

PARCEL 305075
719 BESS TOWN RD

ROBERT AUSTIN BOWEN
DEED BOOK 4867, PAGE 2059

LOT 2 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17
PARCEL 305076

707 BESS TOWN RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151219
755 BESS TOWN RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151214
819 BESS TOWN RD

T

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: COMMERCIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: COMMERCIAL

EX ZONING: RURAL
EX USE: RESIDENTIAL

FILE NO.:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

REVISIONS:

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
02

3,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\C
JS

_P
R\

_P
ro

po
sa

ls\
20

23
\3

29
25

.2
3 

- E
xp

on
en

tia
l E

qu
ity

 B
es

se
m

er
 C

ity
\4

00
 - 

De
sig

n\
10

 - 
Pl

an
s (

CA
D)

\1
 - 

M
as

te
r\

C-
TB

-R
EZ

O
N

IN
G.

dw
g 

9/
13

/2
01

6 
11

:3
5:

06
 A

M

EXPONENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT

6401 CARMEL ROAD, SUITE 202
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226
704-777-8888

BESSEMER CITY
MULTI-FAMILY 

BESS TOWN ROAD
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016 
PID# 151220

04925.00

1" = 60'

06/13/2023

DBT

DBT

SPP

BO
LT

ON & MENK, INC.

C
O R P O R A T E

N
O

R T H  C A R O L IN
A

SEAL
F-1409
C-596

d/ b/ a Co leJ enest  & S t one

200 SOUTH TRYON STREET, SUITE 1400
CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA  28202

Phone: (704) 376-1555
Email: info@colejeneststone.com

www.bolton-menk.com

ALTA/ASCM LAND TITLE SURVEY SURVEY ISSUE DATE MAY, 19,2023. PROVIDED BY THE SURVEY
COMPANY, INC., 4105-B STUART ANDREW BLVD, CHARLOTTE, NC 28217 , PH:704-561-9970

N

No. 1864

NO

RTH CAROL INA

S E A N O
P. P A

NEREG
IS

TE
RE

D

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT

06/13/2023

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

THIS PLAN IS SCHEMATIC IN NATURE AND LOCATIONS
OF ROADS, LOTS AND OTHER AREAS AND IMPROVEMENTS ARE
SUBJECT TO FINAL DETERMINATION ON PRELIMINARY AND FINAL
PLAN.

LANDSCAPE PLAN

SCALE:

0 60'30' 120'

1"=60'

N

RZ-300

29

Item 7.



NCGS MONUMENT
"SUNNYSIDE"
N:581,837.29
E:1,313,419.21
U.S. SURVEY FEET

FOUND
1
2" IRON ROD
(NOT HELD)

(12.6' WEST OF CORNER)

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
XXXX

X
XXXXXXX

XXXXXXXX
XX

X

4' BARBED WIRE FENCE

4' BARBED WIRE FENCE

WILLIAM CARL HOVIS ESTATE
WILL BOOK 2018E, PAGE 1501
DEED BOOK 2444, PAGE 271

PARCEL 151220
14.155 ACRES

(616,598 SQ. FT.)
INCLUDING 0.987 ACRES (43,010 SQ. FT.)

IN THE RIGHT OF WAY OF BESS TOWN ROAD

MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 2561, PAGE 78
PARCEL 151381

MELVIN L KISER JR AND
SUZANNE P KISER

DEED BOOK 5371, PAGE 1347
PARCEL 151390

1465 PUETTS CHAPEL RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151222
802 BESS TOWN RD

GARY GRANT FAMILY FARM LLC
DEED BOOK 4944, PAGE 623

PARCEL 151218
821 BESS TOWN RD

JERIMIAH C SMITH AND
MEGAN A SMITH

DEED BOOK 5204, PAGE 2490
LOT 1 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17

PARCEL 305075
719 BESS TOWN RD

ROBERT AUSTIN BOWEN
DEED BOOK 4867, PAGE 2059

LOT 2 - PLAT BOOK 93, PAGE 17
PARCEL 305076

707 BESS TOWN RD

GARY GRANT FAMILY LLC
DEED BOOK 4731, PAGE 2384

PARCEL 151532
649 BESS TOWN RD

ATT EQUIPMENT
ATTACHED TO POLE

4' ELECTRIC W
IRE FENCE

FOUND
#4 REBAR

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151219
755 BESS TOWN RD

DCA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC
DEED BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740

PARCEL 151214
819 BESS TOWN RD

S51° 43' 43"W             1118.47'S51° 43' 43"W             1118.47'

LINE PER DEED
BOOK 5371, PAGE 1347

LINE PER DEED
BOOK 4895, PAGE 1740
(TRACT TWO)

LINE PER DEED
BOOK 2444, PAGE 271

APPARENT GAP

N61° 19' 04"W
             379.00' (TO

TAL)

S2
7°

 4
9'

 1
7"

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
10

.8
7'

 (T
O

TA
L)

39
.5

3'

46
6.

34
'

S34° 33' 25"E
150.63'

29.55'

349.45'

N29° 47' 19"E       
      4

00.46'

N35° 54' 47"E

72.99'

N44° 44' 59"E

80.93'

N52° 21' 09"E
60.06'

N58° 45' 47"E             132.73' N62° 06' 43"E             95.08'
N57° 16' 05"E             123.62' N44° 16' 12"E

79.15'

N36° 28' 03"E

71.94'

N29° 25' 02"E

69.50'

N24° 08' 28"E

69.38'

N21° 24' 52"E     
     

   1
70.66'

TIE LINE
S55° 22' 11"E

30.08'

T

MAIL BOX

AS
PH

AL
T 

D
R

IV
E

AS
PH

AL
T 

D
R

IV
E

5.00'

5.00'

14
5.

63
'

SET
#5 REBAR

FOUND FENCE POST
CLAMPED AT TOP

FOUND STONE
(DISTURBED)

SET #5 REBAR
(WITNESS)

SET #5 REBAR
(WITNESS)

FOUND
1" IRON ROD

6' TALL POLE

S45° 47' 18"E             9628.06' (G
R

ID
)

G
R

ID
 TIE LIN

E

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

S29° 47' 19"W       
      3

98.28'

S35° 54' 47"W
69.07'

S44° 44' 59"W

76.62'

S52° 21' 09"W
56.39' S58° 45' 47"W             130.17' S62° 06' 43"W             94.20'

N62° 06' 43"E
18.19'

N62° 06' 43"E
19.46'

S57° 16' 05"W             128.31'
S44° 16' 12"W

84.61'

S36° 28' 03"W

75.83'

S29° 25' 02"W

72.73'

S24° 08' 28"W

71.48'

S21° 24' 52"W     
     

   1
45.51'

AREA IN R/W OF BESS
TOWN ROAD = 0.987 ACRES
(43,010 SQ. FT.)

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

TIE LINE
S28° 29' 58"E
35.09'

50' FRONT SETBACK PER ZONING

50' REAR SETBACK PER ZONING

15' SIDE SETBACK PER ZO
NING

15
' S

ID
E 

SE
TB

AC
K 

PE
R

 Z
O

N
IN

G

FOUND #5 REBAR
4.6' TALL

(NOT HELD)
(17.9' SOUTH
OF CORNER)

FOUND 1" PIPE
1.5' TALL

(NOT HELD)
(17.8' SOUTH
OF CORNER)

FOUND #4 REBAR
NC GRID COORDINATES
N: 575,123.52
E: 1,320,320.29
U.S. SURVEY FEET

4' BARBED WIRE FENCE
CROSSES PROPERTY LINE

4' BARBED WIRE FENCE
CROSSES PROPERTY LINE

X

X

X

X

X

X

X4' ELECTRIC W
IRE FENCE

S29° 38' 56"W       
      3

01.05'
TIE LINE

FOUND
#4 REBAR

FOUND
#4 REBAR

 C  2023, THE SURVEY COMPANY, INC. ALL RIGHTS
RESERVED. COPIES OF THE ORIGINAL OF THIS
DOCUMENT DISTRIBUTED BY THE SURVEYOR BEAR
THE ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND EMBOSSED SEAL OF
THE SURVEYOR.

VICINITY MAP      NOT TO SCALE

MAP REFERENCES

1. MAP TITLED "SURVEY FOR MARVIN ROGER HOVIS AND WILLIAM CARL HOVIS" DATED
DECEMBER 09, 1994 PREPARED BY CLONINGER SURVEYING AND MAPPING, SIGNED AND
SEALED BY MICHAEL LARRY CLONINGER PLS L-3190.
NOT OF PUBLIC RECORD.

2. MAP TITLED "BOUNDARY SURVEY OF 42.11 ACRES WYANT PROPERTY" DATED MAY 14,
1990, PREPARED BY  DRAKE SURVEYING AND RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 45, PAGE 95 OF
THE GASTON COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY.

3. MAP TITLED "SUBDIVISION MADE AT THE REQUEST OF JERIMIAH SMITH - PROPERTY OF:
ROBERT AUSTIN BOWEN" DATED JANUARY 28, 2021 PREPARED BY GRAY SURVEYING
COMPANY, INC AND RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 93, PAGE 17 OF THE GASTON COUNTY
PUBLIC REGISTRY.

I CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN
ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION
RECORDED IN BOOK 2444, PAGE 271; THAT THE  BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED
ARE INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION IN PLAT BOOK 45, PAGE 95; PLAT
BOOK 93, PAGE 17; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION IS GREATER THAN 1:10,000
AND THE POSITIONAL ACCURACY IS 0.055; AND THAT THIS MAP MEETS THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE STANDARDS OF PRACTICE FOR LAND SURVEYING IN
NORTH CAROLINA (21 NCAC 56. 1600).

I, CHARLES S. LOGUE, CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS DRAWN UNDER MY
SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL GPS SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION
AND THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION WAS USED TO PERFORM THE SURVEY:

(1) CLASS OF SURVEY:  A
(2) POSITIONAL ACCURACY:

HORIZONTAL POSITIONAL ACCURACY AT 95% CONFIDENCE: 0.055
VERTICAL POSITIONAL ACCURACY AT 95% CONFIDENCE: 0.074

(3) TYPE OF GPS FIELD PROCEDURE: REAL TIME KINEMATIC
(4) DATES OF SURVEY: MAY 11, 2023 THRU MAY 19, 2023
(5) DATUM/EPOCH: HORIZONTAL = NAD83 (2011)

   VERTICAL = NAVD 88
(6) PUBLISHED/FIXED-CONTROL USED: NC VRS CORS
(7) GEOID MODEL: GEOID12B(CONUS)
(8) COMBINED GRID FACTOR(S): 0.9998337885
(9) UNITS: U.S. SURVEY FEET

CHARLES S. LOGUE, PLS L-4212                                               DATE

GENERAL NOTES

1. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL MEASUREMENTS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. ALL AREAS ARE CALCULATED BY THE COORDINATE COMPUTATION METHOD.

3. THIS PLAT IS NOT FOR RECORDATION AS PER G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.

4. ALL CORNERS MONUMENTED AS SHOWN.

5. SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED WITHIN FLOODZONE (X) AS DEFINED BY FEMA-FIRM
COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 3710352700J, REVISED SEPTEMBER 28, 2007.

6. SUBJECT PROPERTY ZONING:  R (RURAL) PER GASTON COUNTY GIS

SETBACKS PER LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE
CITY OF BESSEMER CITY, NC FOR R R(URAL) ZONING

FRONT: 50'
SIDE: 15' (SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS AND MANUFACTUED HOUSING

25' (ALL OTHER USES)
REAR: 50

7. BASIS OF HORIZONTAL DATUM IS NC GRID - NAD 83(2011). VRS DERIVED.

8. BASIS OF VERTICAL DATUM IS NAVD88. VRS DERIVED.

9. THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED WITHOUT BENEFIT OF TITLE COMMITMENT OR REPORT.

10. THE SURVEY COMPANY, INCORPORATED IS RESPONSIBLE ONLY FOR THE LOCATION OF
ABOVE GROUND MARKINGS AND NOT THE ACTUAL LOCATION OF UTILITIES BEING
MARKED. THERE MAY BE OTHER UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ON OR SERVING THIS SITE
OTHER THAN THOSE SHOWN. BEFORE DOING ANY DIGGING CALL NC ONECALL (811).

LEGEND

LINETYPES USED

PROPERTY LINE SURVEYED

PROPERTY LINE NOT SURVEYED

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

SETBACK LINE

OVERHEAD POWER LINE

FENCE LINE

SYMBOLS USED

FOUND PROPERTY CORNER

SET 5/8" REBAR OR PK NAIL

CALCULATED POINT

POWER POLE

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

SIGN

R/W R/W R/W

T

BE
SS

 T
OW

N 
RO

AD

DAVIS RD

PU
ET

TS
 C

HAP
EL

 R
D

DAVIS
PLANTTION RD

LEESVILLE

AVE

N 14TH ST

D
AM

ER
O

N
 R

D

AB
SH

ER
 R

D

DAMERON RD

SCOTT AND

DAWSON LN

SITE

05/19/2023

30

Item 7.



31

Item 8.



32

Item 8.



33

Item 8.



34

Item 8.



35

Item 8.



36

Item 8.



37

Item 8.



38

Item 8.



COBC-GOVBOD-2022-2023 R 2 

 
RESOLUTION TITLE: TO APPROVE A LEVEL TWO INCENTIVE GRANT PURSUANT 

TO N.C.GEN.STAT. §158-7.1 AND TO AUTHORIZE 
BESSEMER CITY TO ENTER INTO AN ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (EDA) WITH PROJECT 
PROGRAM 

 

 

WHEREAS, Project Program is considering a total investment of $17,200,000 to 
establish a facility in Gaston County, to include the purchase and 
installation of machinery & equipment; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the firm intends to create at least 222 new jobs within five years of 
establishing operations, expecting to pay an average wage of $78,153; 
and, 

 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §158-7.1 authorizes a County to 
undertake an economic development project by providing grants for the 
location of industry; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Gaston County developed an economic grant policy to provide global 

advanced manufacturing companies and distribution facilities with 
incentives to develop high quality industries within the County; and, 

 

WHEREAS,  Bessemer City and Gaston County developed an economic grant policy to provide 
global advanced manufacturing companies and distribution facilities with high 
quality industrial park locations; and, 

 

 
WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the Company's capital investment in and at the 

Property and its operations thereat will generate significant ad valorem 
tax, sales tax and other revenues to the County and will qualify for a 
Level Two Incentive Grant; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Bessemer City and the County will prepare a detailed Economic Development 

Agreement (EDA), between Project Program, the County and the City of 
39

Item 10.



Bessemer City, so as to induce the company to provide good job opportunities 
and capital investment which will enhance the County's ability to attract 
additional business and industry. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Bessemer City Council: 

1. That the Level II Economic Incentive Grant is approved for Project 
Program; and,

2. That the Mayor of Bessemer City or the City Manager is authorized to execute 
any documents necessary to complete an Economic Development Agreement 
for Project Program.

Adopted this the 14th day of August 2023. 

________________________________ 
Becky S. Smith, Mayor 

________________________________ 
Hydeia Y. Hayes, MPA, CMC, City Clerk 

40

Item 10.



COBC-GOVBOD-2022-2023 O 44 
 

  

  

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT   
August 14, 2023 

  

  

BE IT ORDAINED by the governing body of the City of Bessemer City that the following 

amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, as follows:  

  

  Section 1.    To amend the General Fund appropriations as follows: 

Acct. No.                Debit Credit 

  

100-10-4340-290            Departmental Supplies                            $20,624.34                           

              

This will result in a net increase of $20,624.34 in the appropriations for the General Fund. To provide         

the additional revenue for the above, the following revenues will be increased.  

                 

100-00-3434-360            Grant – Fire Dept                              $20,312.17

    

100-00-3991-991            Fund Balance Appropriated                               $     312.17

                            

                       

 

        

     

      Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk, to the Governing Board, 

and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.                  

  

      

  Adopted by Council, this ______ day of ____________________ 2023. 

  

  

__________________________________________      __________________________  

Becky Smith, Mayor                            Date   

  

   
 _________________________________________________________      ___________________________________ 

Hydeia Hayes, Clerk               Date  

 

41

Item 11.



          Section 1.  To amend the General Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows:

General Fund

Dept Number Increase Decrease Debit Credit

100-00-4120-183 Health Insurance 2,700.00$          

100-00-4900-183 Health Insurance 450.00$             

100-10-4310-183 Health Insurance 7,650.00$          

100-20-4250-183 Health Insurance 900.00$             

100-80-6120-183 Health Insurance 1,800.00$          

13,500.00$        

This will result in a net increase in appropriations of $2,700 for the General Fund.  

To provide for the increase, the following General Fund Revenue Accounts will be increased.

General Fund

Dept Number Increase Decrease Debit Credit

100-00-3991-991 Fund Balance Appropriated 13,500.00$        

          Section 2.  To amend the Wate/Sewer Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows:

Water/Sewer Fund

Dept Number Increase Decrease Debit Credit

610-91-7150-183 Health Insurance 4,500.00$          

610-91-7130-183 Health Insurance 1,800.00$          

This will result in a net increase in appropriations of $1,360 for the Water/Sewer Fund.  

To provide for the increase, the following Water/Sewer Revenue Accounts will be increased.

Water/Sewer Fund

Dept Number Increase Decrease Debit Credit

610-91-3991-991 Fund Balance Appropriated 6,300.00$          

          Section 3.  To amend the Natural Gas Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows:

Natural Gas Fund

Dept Number Increase Decrease Debit Credit

640-94-7320-183 Health Insurance 1,800.00$          

This will result in a net increase in appropriations of $360 for the Natural Gas Fund.  

To provide for the increase, the following Natural Gas Revenue Accounts will be increased.

Natural Gas Fund

Dept Number Increase Decrease Debit Credit

640-94-3991-991 Fund Balance Appropriated 1,800.00$          

Adopted by Council, this ______ day of ____________________ 2023.

 and the Finance Officer.

Attest:

Hydeia Y. Hayes, Clerk

Becky S. Smith, Mayor

BUDGET AMENDMENT 2023-2024
August 14, 2023

BE IT ORDAINED by the governing body of the City of Bessemer City that the following amendments be made to the 

annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

Description

Description

Description

Description

Description

Description

        Section 4. Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk, Governing Board, Budget Officer

42

Item 12.


	Top
	Item 2.	Approval of Minutes
	Bessemer City Regular Meeting Minutes July 10 2023

	Item 3.	Approval of Minutes
	City Council Work Session Minutes July 2023

	Item 4.	Street Closure - 2nd Annual Brew & Que Festival
	Ordinance- Brew & Que 2nd

	Item 5.	Local Water Supply Plan:
	Local Water Supply Plan for Council -2023 (002)

	Item 6.	9/11 Proclamation
	Proclamation- September 11th 2023

	Item 7.	Public Hearing - Besstown Rd
	Signed LD_RZ_Aplications_06.12.23
	Areas of Relief and Conditions of Approval
	Exhibit B - Metes and Bounds
	CD 01-2023 Staff Report
	Exhibit A_Survey_05.19.2023
	Bessemer City Multi-family Traffic Memo 6_9_23
	Boundary Survey_05.19.23
	4925_Bessemer_City_Multi-Family_Rezoning_Package_06.13.23

	Item 8.	Public Hearing - Petition for Voluntary Annexation Besstown Rd
	Bess Town Rd Annexation Packet

	Item 10.	Resolution - Besstown Rd
	2023-219 Res. Project Program--

	Item 11.	Budget Amendment:
	FD Grant Budget Amendment Aug 2023 Budget Amendment 1

	Item 12.	Budget Amendment 5:
	Copy of Health Insurance Budget Amendment August 2023 final

	Bottom

